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The attached property, the Phillips County Courthouse, in
Phillips County, Arkansas, reference number 77000265, was
listed in the National Register of Historic Places by the Keeper
of the National Register on 7/15/1977, as evidenced by the
FEDERAL REGISTER/WEEKLY LIST notice of Tuesday, February
7, 1978, Part I, Vol. 43, No. 26, page 5171. The attached
nomination form is a copy of the original documentation
provided to the Keeper at the time of listing.
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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

" The Phillips County Courthouse in Helena, Arkansas was constructed in .
1914 at a cost of $250,000. Little Rock Architect Frank W. Gibb de-
signed the building. He is also responsible for the design of several
southern Arkansas courthouses. As the third official Phillips County
Courthouse, the structure has served since 1914 as theApolltlcal and
governmeneal center of the historic Mississippi Rlver town. .

Basically rectangular in shape, the Phillips County Courthouse is a
two-story, brick structure with a flat roof. A pent roof runs around
the building detailed as classical cornices with dentils. A cast-
stone water table encircles the building. A somewhat unusual feature
of the building is that both the north and west elevatlons contaln
main entrances.

The most distinctive feature of the building are the sections of engaged
fluted Corinthian columns on north, south and west elevations. These
columns are two stories tall and are set one story above ground level.
On the north elevation five columns set into a recessed panel of stone
blocks mark the north entry. . This four-bay wide section is identical to
the recessed section on the south elevation with the exception that there
is no entry on the south. The main entry to the Phillips County Court-
house is located on the west elevation. A seven-bay wide recessed panel
with eight engaged columns features denticulated entablatures with
decorative medallions over the entry door and the two windows flanking
either side.

Decorative cast-stone medallions are found in pairs on the brick portion

of the building at the frieze line. Window treatment is simple with
those in the brick sections featuring keystones.

The east elevation houses the Phillips County Jail. Architecture on
this elevation is devoid of ornamentation. Pairs of double-hung win-
dows with transoms are spaced regularly on this elevation.

The interiors of the Phillips County Courthouse are ornate and rich in
design. A central symmetrical divided flights stairway of marble serves
as the focal point of the lobby. Decorative plaster-work abounds on the
ceiling.

Ornate plaster brackets support celllng beams in the lobby. Other dis-
tinctive features of the exterior are patterned ceramic tile floors,
marble wainscotting, original brass hardware, and the original wood
moldings around doors and windows. Only minor alterations have taken
place in the structure.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The largest number of architecturally significant public buildings
in Arkansas are the courthouses scattered over the state's seventy-
five counties. A structural symbol of American government, the
courthouse serves as the center of local political activity. Often
the largest and most costly building in the county, the courthouse

is almost always a source of pride to the citizens who financed and
made use of its facilities.

Phillips County was established May 1, 1820, from territory taken
from Arkansas County. It was the second county to be established

by the Arkansas Territorial Legislature. It was named in honor of
Sylvanus Phillips who settled near the mouth of the St. Francis River
in 1797. Phillips County covers 704 square miles and is bounded by
Lee County on the north, by the Mississippi River on the east, Desha
County on the south and Arkansas and Monroe Counties on the west.
There are two distinct topographical divisions in the county: (1)

Alluvial river bottom lowlands and (2) Crowley's Ridge in the north-
east section. : '

Helena, situated on the Mississippi River, was made the county seat
in 1830 and officially incorporated as a city in 1833. According to
local sources, the first county building in Phillips County was a
two-story log structure. This building housed a courtroom on its
second floor and a jail on the first floor. Records indicate that’
the lot on which the building stood was not owned by the county, but
was the property of a private citizen.

In 1845 a lot was purchased for the purpose of constructing a county
jail. In January, 1847, three commissioners were appointed to receive
proposals and contracts for building a courthouse, cost.not to exceed

$6,000. Built in 1847, the structure was a two-story frame building
50 feet square.

In 1861 the courthouse burned and no attempt was made to build anbther
courthouse until after the Civil War. BAccording to records, no courts
were held from June, 1862, to May 29, 1865. In 1867 the second floor
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As the most architecturally and politically important structure in
Phillips County, the courthouse is a local landmark. Resting on its
original site and in excellent condition, the Phillips County Court-
house is a significant historical structure.
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of a building was rented for court purposes. From 1868 to 1870
while a new courthouse was under construction, a privately owned
building was rented for court purposes and county offices.

In 1869 a large two-story brick courthouse with a dome was con- i -~
structed at a cost of over $44,000. This building was razed when
the present courthouse was completed and the lot given for the
purpose of establishing a public playground.

In 1911 the Quorum Court of Phillips County appropriated $10,000

for the purpose of building a new courthouse and jail for the county.
The County Court also authorized the erection of a new building pro-
vided that the United States government would cede to Phillips County
two-and-one-half lots. By act of Congress approved December, 1912,
the lots were ceded to the county, conditional that construction
would begin within one year. F. F. Kitchens was appointed Commissioner
of Public Buildings to superintend the erection of a courthouse and
-jail, for which $250,000 was appropriated. 1In July, 1913, Phillips
County contracted with F. W. Gibbs and Company, Architects, to design
the new building. In April, 1914, L. R. Wright and Company of Dallas,
Texas was awarded the contract for construction. On June 14, 1915,
the completed building was officially accepted by the county.

This historical structure is also significant architecturally. It is a
rectangular-shaped building of brick construction. The two-story -:
courthouse features a flat roof with a pent roof running around the
structure detailed as classical cornices. The most distinctive features
- of the building are the recessed sections of cast-stone blocks with en-
gaged fluted Corinthian columns set into the north, south and west ele-
vations. Interiors are exceptionally ornate with ceramic tile floors,

marble wainscotting, decorative plaster molding and the central symmet-
rical stairway of marble.

Constructed in 1914, the.Phillips County Courthouse commands a prominent
corner in Helena's downtown. Its governmental and architectural signif-

icance combine to make the Phillips County Courthouse a historically
significant structure.
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